
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Dr Helen Paterson, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Heather Bowers 
Email: 
Heather.Bowers@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 07873 700 976 
Date: Monday, 10 February 2025 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CRAMLINGTON, BEDLINGTON AND 
SEATON VALLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
COUNTY HALL on TUESDAY, 18 FEBRUARY 2025 at 5.00 PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
 
Dr Helen Paterson 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee members as 
follows:- 

L Bowman, E Chicken, W Daley, P Ezhilchelvan, D Ferguson, B Flux, S Lee (Vice-Chair), 
M Robinson, M Swinburn (Chair), C Taylor, R Wilczek (Vice-Chair (Planning)) and 
A Smith 

 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 18 February 2025 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
2.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting; 
  
Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set 
out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the 
interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in 
room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive 
function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they 
must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal 
with the matter. 
  
Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 
Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members 
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must 
not take part in any discussion  or vote on the matter and must not remain 
the room. 
  
Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being (and is not  
DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare 
the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of 
the public are also allowed to speak.  Otherwise, the member must not 
take part in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. 
  
Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 
associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests 
column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at 
paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in 
the meeting. 
  
Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 
Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring 
Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it. 
  
NB Any member needing clarification must contact 
monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred to the 
Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full.  Please refer 
to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
 

 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 18 February 2025 

3.   LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROGRAMME 2025-26 
 
The report sets out the details of the draft Local Transport Plan (LTP) 
Highway Maintenance programmes for 2025-26 for consideration and 
comment by the Local Area Committee, prior to final approval of the 
programme by the Executive Director for Place and Regeneration in 
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Improving our Roads and 
Highways. 
 

(Pages 
9 - 16) 

 
4.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next Local Area Planning Committee meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday 19 March. 
  
The next Local Area Committee meeting is scheduled for Tuesday 25 
March 2025 at East Bedlington Community Centre. 
 

 

 
5.   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
To consider such other business, as in the opinion of the Chair, should, 
by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of 
urgency. 
  
 

 



 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Tuesday, 18 February 2025 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Tuesday, 18 February 2025 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 
connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 
you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 18 February 2025 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 
ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Tuesday, 18 February 2025 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 18 February 2025 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



 
 

North Northumberland Local Area Committee 

Thursday 20 February 2025 

Local Transport Plan Programme 

Report of Councillor(s) John Riddle, Cabinet Member for Improving Roads and 
Highways 
 
Responsible Officer(s): Simon Neilson, Executive Director - Place and Regeneration 

1. Link to Key Priorities of the Corporate Plan   
This report is relevant to the following key themes in the Corporate Plan for 2023-2026: 

● ‘Achieving Value for Money’ 
● ‘Tackling inequalities’ 
● ‘Driving economic growth’ 

 

2. Purpose of report 

This report sets out the details of the draft Local Transport Plan (LTP) Highway 
Maintenance programmes for 2025-26 for consideration and comment by the Local Area 
Committee, prior to final approval of the programme by the Executive Director for Place 
and Regeneration in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Improving our Roads and 
Highways. 

 

3. Recommendations 
3.1 Members of the Local Area Committee are asked to comment on the proposals, so 

that their comments can be considered in the finalisation of the LTP 2025-26 
programme to be carried out in 2025/26. 

4. Forward plan date and reason for urgency if applicable 
N/A 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 2 

 
- 2 -

5. Background 
Key issues  

5.1 The Local Transport Plan grant allocation is determined for the Council by the North 
East Combined Authority (NECA) based on the City Regional Sustainable Transport 
Settlement (CRSTS) from the Department of Transport (DfT). The draft LTP 
programme 2025/26 is based on a CRSTS settlement from NECA of £23,425,624. 

5.2 A further sum of £2,768,000 has been allocated to Northumberland County Council 
by NECA cabinet to supplement existing CRSTS funding for highway maintenance, 
which it has recognised as being insufficient to sustain the highway network to the 
desired standard. 

5.3 The Council has also identified a further £2,500,000 of capital funding for highway 
maintenance through the Medium-Term Financial Plan budget setting process for 
2025/26 although this has yet to be formally agreed at the County Council meeting 
on 19th February 2025 

5.4 A £28,693,624 Council Local Transport Plan programme has therefore been 
developed for 2025-26, consisting of improvements and maintenance schemes to 
address four key areas: Sustainable Transport; Safety; Roads; and Bridges, 
Structures & Landslips. 

5.5 Appendix A to E sets out the details of the recommended LTP Programme for 2025-
26. 

5.6 During the October 2024 budget statement, Central Government announced an 
additional £500m of funding for highway maintenance to deal with potholes of which 
£21,734,000 has been allocated to NECA. We are currently awaiting confirmation 
from NECA of the impacts of this additional funding on our CRSTS allocation and at 
this stage we have not yet factored in the additional pothole funding to the draft LTP 
programme detailed in this report. The final maintenance programme for 2025/26 
will therefore need to be reviewed and refined as appropriate to reflect the actual 
level of funding received and following the consideration of feedback from the 
LAC’s, before being finalised in late February 2025. 

5.7 The funding for the programmes is subject to approval of the Council’s capital 
programme at the County Council meeting on 19th February 2025. 

 

LTP PROGRAMME 2025 - 26 

5.8 The draft LTP programme 2025/26 is based on a settlement of £28,693,624, which 
reflects a current baseline allocation of £21,780,000 for maintenance, a further 
additional £2,768,000 funding for 2025/26 for maintenance, £1,645,624 for 
integrated transport improvements and a further additional £2,500,000 from the 
Councils own capital resources identified in the MTFP process for maintenance 
specifically targeting pothole repairs. 

5.9 The £28,693,624 Local Transport Plan programme developed for 2025/26 consists 
of improvements and maintenance schemes to address four key areas: Sustainable 
Transport; Safety; Roads; and Bridges, Structures & Landslips, the details of the 
2025/26 LTP programme are set out in Appendix A to E.   

Page 10



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 3 

 
- 3 -

 
5.10 The LTP programme has been developed following a comprehensive review of the 

needs for the maintenance of the highway asset, identified road safety issues and 
potential improvement of the highway and transport network.  Requests for 
improvements and maintenance received from the local community over time are 
recorded in the asset management system. County Council Members and Town and 
Parish Councils are provided with details of requests made from their own areas 
throughout the last year and they are asked to take these into account when 
considering their priorities for the programme. 

5.11 Priorities for the 2025-26 programme were invited from County Council Members 
and Town and Parish Councils during summer 2024 and those put forward have 
been assessed against criteria from the Local Transport Plan and Transport Asset 
Management Plan (TAMP).  These are then combined with consideration of road 
safety improvement needs, based on accident statistics and other data sources, and 
the asset management needs of the overall highway network, based on inspections, 
condition data and the network hierarchy, to determine an overall programme of 
capital investment. 

5.12 It should be noted that in some cases the budget allocations contained in the 
Appendices to this report are estimates only.   At this stage it is the issue or problem 
that has been prioritised for inclusion in the programme and the design process will 
provide options for finding a solution.  The assessment of options takes account of a 
number of factors including value for money and affordability.  Costs will be firmed 
up as the proposals proceed through the design process. 

5.13 It should also be noted that any schemes from the 2024-25 programme which are 
not completed by the end of the financial year will continue to be implemented in 
2025-26 and are not detailed in this report. 

5.14 A brief description of the types of highways and transport issues addressed by the 
LTP programme is set out below. 

5.15 Priority for Integrated Transport is given to schemes that contribute to the 
achievements of the LTP objectives.  The objectives reflect local needs and are 
related to North East Transport Plan (NETP) goals.  The NETP is centred on 
connecting people to good employment opportunities, generating economic growth, 

Appendix Scheme Type Proposed Expenditure

A Sustainable Transport £2,245,000

B Safety £2,210,000

C Roads £17,545,624

D Bridges, Structures and 
Landslips

£4,193,000

E MTFP Pothole Fund £2,500,000

Total Programme £28,693,624

Page 11



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 4 

 
- 4 -

while enabling the region and its people to move to healthier and greener more 
sustainable ways of travel.  

5.16 The improvement part of the programme is aimed at creating improvements for all 
types of users of the highway network.  The allocations are split between different 
types of proposals aimed at making improvements for sustainable transport, as well 
as improvements for vehicular users such as public transport and road users.  The 
improvements are designed to make the highway environment more attractive to 
pedestrians and cyclists, address areas of congestion and meet new and increased 
demands. 

5.17 The Highway Capital Maintenance programme is split between different types of 
proposals aimed at maintaining the highway infrastructure by achieving objectives 
set out in the Council’s Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP).  Funds are 
allocated across the programme by applying a scoring process that has been 
developed following asset management principles in order to deliver the TAMP 
objectives. 

5.18 The majority of the highway maintenance programme is aimed at addressing the 
structural decline of our roads as they form the largest part of our highway assets. 
We also take account of the needs of the other asset groups such as footways and 
cycleways, drainage, structures and traffic management assets.  A risk based 
approach is used to determine priorities for maintenance and is based on priorities 
at a strategic level, transport network level and asset maintenance level. 

5.19 It should be noted that proposed expenditure for Maintenance within the programme 
is £26,483,624 and for Integrated Transport is £2,210,000. These are generally in 
line with the expected allocations, but with Integrated Transport slightly exceeding 
the allocation and Maintenance expenditure set to balance this.  

Sustainable Transport 

5.20 Improvements for sustainable transport are a significant feature within the LTP 
programme. This year the draft LTP for 2025-26 has a specific allocation of 
£2,245,000 for walking and cycling as set out in Appendix A attached to this report. 

5.21 This allocation includes £480,000 for schemes that provide improvements for 
sustainable transport including walking and cycling, as well as £1,765,000 for 
maintaining existing footpaths (rights of way), footways (along the side of the road) 
and cycleways (either part of the road or adjacent to it).  

5.22 Alongside these specific allocations, it should be noted that much of the Safety 
element of the programme in Appendix B will also contribute to ensuring that the 
highway environment is improved in a way that will encourage more walking and 
cycling. 

5.23 It should be noted that the Council continues with its initiative to deliver on the Local 
Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) in Northumberland’s main 
towns.  Focusing on the main towns will ensure that key employment sites, travel to 
work areas, school transport interchanges and significant new housing 
developments are all considered. It is anticipated that as the LCWIPs develop then 
they will become a key consideration in future when bidding for external funding, 
seeking developer contributions and allocating funds within future LTP programmes 
for cycling and walking schemes.  

Page 12



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 5 

 
- 5 -

5.24 Major new cycleways are currently being implemented at North Seaton Road 
Ashington, A193 south of Bondicar Terrace Blyth, Hexham to Corbridge, Bedlington 
and Blyth Town Centre to Bebside through funding streams including Active Travel 
Fund, Transforming Cities Fund, Levelling Up Fund and Energising Blyth.    

5.25 It should be noted that a number of County Councillors and Town and Parish 
Councils put forward priorities for the introduction of new cycleways and footways 
which when assessed were considered to be beyond the funding scope that would 
be available through the LTP capital programme. The details of these potential 
cycleways and footways have been captured separately and recorded so that they 
can also be considered should any other appropriate sources of external funding or 
bidding opportunities for such schemes become available.  

5.26 It is further noted that there is an ongoing programme of Travel Behaviour Change 
measures that lie outside of the scope of the LTP programme but adds significant 
value to what we deliver. 

5.27 The details of the draft LTP Sustainable Transport Programme of £2,245,000 for 
2025-26 is set out in Appendix A, attached to this report. 

Safety 

5.28 An allocation of £2,210,000 has been made to improve safety on the highway 
network. Details of the programme are set out in Appendix B attached to this report 

5.29 £1,350,000 is aimed at reducing the number and severity of road traffic casualties, 
through a programme of local safety schemes. Funding available for safety 
improvements to High Risk Sites will be at a level of £600,000. It also includes 
allocations of £200,000 for Rural Road Safety Improvements and £100,000 for 
Urban Road Safety Improvements.  

5.30 £510,000 has been allocated to improve traffic management and traffic calming 
measures. Much of this funding will also create safer conditions where road safety 
concerns have been identified which will in turn encourage more walking and 
cycling.  

5.31 A £350,000 allocation has been included to continue with the general refurbishment 
and renewal of existing signage and the replenishment of existing road markings. 
Both of these activities seek to improve the general safety for the highway user.  

Roads 

5.32 This section of the programme is the largest part of the programme with an 
allocation of £17,545,624 for maintenance of existing roads, including drainage, 
traffic lights and car park maintenance.  

5.33 The programme is guided by the principles of effective asset management and is 
made up of £7,750,000 for named carriageway repair and drainage schemes (of 
which £2,920,000 is on major roads and the resilient road network and £4,830,000 
on other local roads); £4,310,000 for surface dressing; £395,000 for micro surfacing 
and retexturing; and finally £5,090,624 of general refurbishment which includes 
retexturing, lining refurbishment, drainage, traffic signals, car parks and footways as 
well as preparatory work for the next year’s surface treatment programme. 

5.34 The details of the draft Roads Programme for 2025-26 is set out in Appendix C 
attached to this report. 

Page 13



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 6 

 
- 6 -

Bridges, Structures and Landslips 

5.35 An allocation of £3,221,000 has been made for bridge maintenance. Again, effective 
asset management is the main driver. This includes a programme that also 
addresses the maintenance backlog by providing bridge strengthening to a number 
of bridges as this continues to remain a key objective. 

5.36 There is also an allocation of £972,000 for addressing landslips to enable 
stabilisation work as a cost effective approach to prevent the deterioration and 
potential loss of use of the network at critical locations throughout the County. 

5.37 The details of the Bridges, Structures and Landslips Programme of £4,193,000 for 
2024-25 is set out in Appendix D, attached to this report. 

Medium Term Financial Plan – Pothole Fund 

5.38 A trial was carried out during summer 2023 which has indicated that an enhanced 
programme of planned structural patching would be beneficial to the condition and 
ride quality of the highway network rather than carrying out localised reactive 
repairs. This programme is being continued throughout 2025/26 using the 
£2,500,000 of pothole repair funding that is to be considered through the Councils 
MTFP process.  Further enhanced programmes of structural patching will be 
considered utilising any further additional funding that is allocated to highway 
maintenance above the levels shown in this report. 

5.39 The Medium Term Financial Plan Pothole Fund programme will provide repairs to 
those minor roads already in poor condition, which will improve the overall condition 
of this network, building resilience and reducing long term costs. This will help to 
reduce the number of potholes that arise, improve condition and ride quality and 
minimise the need for future repairs in these areas. Identification and prioritisation of 
schemes has taken into account asset management principles in order to deliver 
Northumberland’s Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) objectives. 

5.40 The programme to address deterioration across the lower categories of our network 
has been split into two packages of work: 

5.41 Carriageway Repairs which will address some of the worst sections of the minor 
road network, providing essential structural maintenance and resurfacing works over 
and above that already planned within the LTP. 

5.42 Small Works to Minor Roads which will allow us to address those more discrete 
areas situated on the minor road network that are identified by the Area Teams to 
be in poor condition.  Works will consist of smaller areas of resurfacing and 
structural patching. 

5.43 The details of the MTFP Pothole Fund programme of £2,500,000 for 2025-26 is set 
out in Appendix E, attached to this report. 

Next Steps  

5.44 Following consideration by Local Area Committees at their meetings in February, 
any comments received will be considered and the final 2025-26 programmes for 
the Local Transport Plan and will be prepared for consideration and approval by the 
Portfolio Holder for Improving our Roads and Highways and the Executive Director 
for Place and Regeneration. 

Page 14



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 7 

 
- 7 -

5.45 Following agreement of the final programme, all County Council members and Town 
and Parish Councils who put forward priorities for the LTP programme will then be 
provided with further information regarding the outcome of the assessment of their 
submission and whether it has been possible to include their priority schemes within 
the programme this year. 

6. Options open to the Council and reasons for the recommendations 
6.1  

7. Implications 

Policy  The proposed programme is consistent with existing policies  

Finance and 
value for 
money 

The Programme allocations are within the  budget available for 
2025-26 through DfT funding and the additional County 
Council capital agreed in the 2025/26 Medium Term Financial 
Plan.   
 

Legal  None  

Procurement  Not applicable 

Human 
resources  

None 

Property  None 

The Equalities 
Act: is a full 
impact 
assessment 
required and 
attached? 

No - no equalities issues identified 
As a key issue for Northumberland, the needs of those that are 
socially excluded have been taken into account in the 
development of this programme. 
Improvement to footways will improve accessibility for 
pedestrians and those with mobility issues. 
 

Risk 
assessment  The programme has been developed to minimise risks to the 

travelling public whether they are travelling on our roads or 
footways.   
Risks to the delivery of any individual scheme within the 
programme will be considered during scheme development. 
By managing risk at a scheme level, the risks to delivery of the 
overall programme will be controlled. 
 

Crime and 
disorder  

Not applicable 

Page 15



Local Transport Plan Programme 
North Northumberland Local Area Committee    Thursday, 20 February 2025    page 8 

 
- 8 -

Customer 
considerations  

The delivery of the programme will improve the highways and 
transport network in Northumberland for the benefit of the 
travelling public. 

Carbon 
reduction  

Consideration is provided to using products based on their 
sustainable performance in use and opportunities for reuse 
and recycling at the end of life. 

Health and 
wellbeing   

Schemes to encourage more active travel through improved 
infrastructure for walking and cycling, road safety measures 
and improvement to the condition of footways and roads all act 
to improve the overall health and wellbeing of our 
communities. 

Wards  (All Wards); 

8. Background papers 
Not applicable 

9. Links to other key reports already published 
Not applicable 

10. Author and Contact Details  
Robin McCartney, Highways Infrastructure Manager 
Email: robin.mccartney@nothumberland.gov.uk 

Page 16


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	3 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROGRAMME 2025-26
	Local Transport Plan Programme
	1.	Link to Key Priorities of the Corporate Plan
	2.	Purpose of report
	3.	Recommendations
	3.1	Members of the Local Area Committee are asked to comment on the proposals, so that their comments can be considered in the finalisation of the LTP 2025-26 programme to be carried out in 2025/26.
	4.	Forward plan date and reason for urgency if applicable
	5.	Background
	Key issues
	5.1	The Local Transport Plan grant allocation is determined for the Council by the North East Combined Authority (NECA) based on the City Regional Sustainable Transport Settlement (CRSTS) from the Department of Transport (DfT). The draft LTP programme 2025/26 is based on a CRSTS settlement from NECA of £23,425,624.
	5.2	A further sum of £2,768,000 has been allocated to Northumberland County Council by NECA cabinet to supplement existing CRSTS funding for highway maintenance, which it has recognised as being insufficient to sustain the highway network to the desired standard.
	5.3	The Council has also identified a further £2,500,000 of capital funding for highway maintenance through the Medium-Term Financial Plan budget setting process for 2025/26 although this has yet to be formally agreed at the County Council meeting on 19th February 2025
	5.4	A £28,693,624 Council Local Transport Plan programme has therefore been developed for 2025-26, consisting of improvements and maintenance schemes to address four key areas: Sustainable Transport; Safety; Roads; and Bridges, Structures & Landslips.
	5.5	Appendix A to E sets out the details of the recommended LTP Programme for 2025-26.
	5.6	During the October 2024 budget statement, Central Government announced an additional £500m of funding for highway maintenance to deal with potholes of which £21,734,000 has been allocated to NECA. We are currently awaiting confirmation from NECA of the impacts of this additional funding on our CRSTS allocation and at this stage we have not yet factored in the additional pothole funding to the draft LTP programme detailed in this report. The final maintenance programme for 2025/26 will therefore need to be reviewed and refined as appropriate to reflect the actual level of funding received and following the consideration of feedback from the LAC’s, before being finalised in late February 2025.
	5.7	The funding for the programmes is subject to approval of the Council’s capital programme at the County Council meeting on 19th February 2025.
	LTP PROGRAMME 2025 - 26
	5.8	The draft LTP programme 2025/26 is based on a settlement of £28,693,624, which reflects a current baseline allocation of £21,780,000 for maintenance, a further additional £2,768,000 funding for 2025/26 for maintenance, £1,645,624 for integrated transport improvements and a further additional £2,500,000 from the Councils own capital resources identified in the MTFP process for maintenance specifically targeting pothole repairs.
	5.9	The £28,693,624 Local Transport Plan programme developed for 2025/26 consists of improvements and maintenance schemes to address four key areas: Sustainable Transport; Safety; Roads; and Bridges, Structures & Landslips, the details of the 2025/26 LTP programme are set out in Appendix A to E.
	5.10	The LTP programme has been developed following a comprehensive review of the needs for the maintenance of the highway asset, identified road safety issues and potential improvement of the highway and transport network.  Requests for improvements and maintenance received from the local community over time are recorded in the asset management system. County Council Members and Town and Parish Councils are provided with details of requests made from their own areas throughout the last year and they are asked to take these into account when considering their priorities for the programme.
	5.11	Priorities for the 2025-26 programme were invited from County Council Members and Town and Parish Councils during summer 2024 and those put forward have been assessed against criteria from the Local Transport Plan and Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP).  These are then combined with consideration of road safety improvement needs, based on accident statistics and other data sources, and the asset management needs of the overall highway network, based on inspections, condition data and the network hierarchy, to determine an overall programme of capital investment.
	5.12	It should be noted that in some cases the budget allocations contained in the Appendices to this report are estimates only.   At this stage it is the issue or problem that has been prioritised for inclusion in the programme and the design process will provide options for finding a solution.  The assessment of options takes account of a number of factors including value for money and affordability.  Costs will be firmed up as the proposals proceed through the design process.
	5.13	It should also be noted that any schemes from the 2024-25 programme which are not completed by the end of the financial year will continue to be implemented in 2025-26 and are not detailed in this report.
	5.14	A brief description of the types of highways and transport issues addressed by the LTP programme is set out below.
	5.15	Priority for Integrated Transport is given to schemes that contribute to the achievements of the LTP objectives.  The objectives reflect local needs and are related to North East Transport Plan (NETP) goals.  The NETP is centred on connecting people to good employment opportunities, generating economic growth, while enabling the region and its people to move to healthier and greener more sustainable ways of travel.
	5.16	The improvement part of the programme is aimed at creating improvements for all types of users of the highway network.  The allocations are split between different types of proposals aimed at making improvements for sustainable transport, as well as improvements for vehicular users such as public transport and road users.  The improvements are designed to make the highway environment more attractive to pedestrians and cyclists, address areas of congestion and meet new and increased demands.
	5.17	The Highway Capital Maintenance programme is split between different types of proposals aimed at maintaining the highway infrastructure by achieving objectives set out in the Council’s Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP).  Funds are allocated across the programme by applying a scoring process that has been developed following asset management principles in order to deliver the TAMP objectives.
	5.18	The majority of the highway maintenance programme is aimed at addressing the structural decline of our roads as they form the largest part of our highway assets. We also take account of the needs of the other asset groups such as footways and cycleways, drainage, structures and traffic management assets.  A risk based approach is used to determine priorities for maintenance and is based on priorities at a strategic level, transport network level and asset maintenance level.
	5.19	It should be noted that proposed expenditure for Maintenance within the programme is £26,483,624 and for Integrated Transport is £2,210,000. These are generally in line with the expected allocations, but with Integrated Transport slightly exceeding the allocation and Maintenance expenditure set to balance this.
	Sustainable Transport
	5.20	Improvements for sustainable transport are a significant feature within the LTP programme. This year the draft LTP for 2025-26 has a specific allocation of £2,245,000 for walking and cycling as set out in Appendix A attached to this report.
	5.21	This allocation includes £480,000 for schemes that provide improvements for sustainable transport including walking and cycling, as well as £1,765,000 for maintaining existing footpaths (rights of way), footways (along the side of the road) and cycleways (either part of the road or adjacent to it).
	5.22	Alongside these specific allocations, it should be noted that much of the Safety element of the programme in Appendix B will also contribute to ensuring that the highway environment is improved in a way that will encourage more walking and cycling.
	5.23	It should be noted that the Council continues with its initiative to deliver on the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plans (LCWIPs) in Northumberland’s main towns.  Focusing on the main towns will ensure that key employment sites, travel to work areas, school transport interchanges and significant new housing developments are all considered. It is anticipated that as the LCWIPs develop then they will become a key consideration in future when bidding for external funding, seeking developer contributions and allocating funds within future LTP programmes for cycling and walking schemes.
	5.24	Major new cycleways are currently being implemented at North Seaton Road Ashington, A193 south of Bondicar Terrace Blyth, Hexham to Corbridge, Bedlington and Blyth Town Centre to Bebside through funding streams including Active Travel Fund, Transforming Cities Fund, Levelling Up Fund and Energising Blyth.
	5.25	It should be noted that a number of County Councillors and Town and Parish Councils put forward priorities for the introduction of new cycleways and footways which when assessed were considered to be beyond the funding scope that would be available through the LTP capital programme. The details of these potential cycleways and footways have been captured separately and recorded so that they can also be considered should any other appropriate sources of external funding or bidding opportunities for such schemes become available.
	5.26	It is further noted that there is an ongoing programme of Travel Behaviour Change measures that lie outside of the scope of the LTP programme but adds significant value to what we deliver.
	5.27	The details of the draft LTP Sustainable Transport Programme of £2,245,000 for 2025-26 is set out in Appendix A, attached to this report.
	Safety
	5.28	An allocation of £2,210,000 has been made to improve safety on the highway network. Details of the programme are set out in Appendix B attached to this report
	5.29	£1,350,000 is aimed at reducing the number and severity of road traffic casualties, through a programme of local safety schemes. Funding available for safety improvements to High Risk Sites will be at a level of £600,000. It also includes allocations of £200,000 for Rural Road Safety Improvements and £100,000 for Urban Road Safety Improvements.
	5.30	£510,000 has been allocated to improve traffic management and traffic calming measures. Much of this funding will also create safer conditions where road safety concerns have been identified which will in turn encourage more walking and cycling.
	5.31	A £350,000 allocation has been included to continue with the general refurbishment and renewal of existing signage and the replenishment of existing road markings. Both of these activities seek to improve the general safety for the highway user.
	Roads
	5.32	This section of the programme is the largest part of the programme with an allocation of £17,545,624 for maintenance of existing roads, including drainage, traffic lights and car park maintenance.
	5.33	The programme is guided by the principles of effective asset management and is made up of £7,750,000 for named carriageway repair and drainage schemes (of which £2,920,000 is on major roads and the resilient road network and £4,830,000 on other local roads); £4,310,000 for surface dressing; £395,000 for micro surfacing and retexturing; and finally £5,090,624 of general refurbishment which includes retexturing, lining refurbishment, drainage, traffic signals, car parks and footways as well as preparatory work for the next year’s surface treatment programme.
	5.34	The details of the draft Roads Programme for 2025-26 is set out in Appendix C attached to this report.
	Bridges, Structures and Landslips
	5.35	An allocation of £3,221,000 has been made for bridge maintenance. Again, effective asset management is the main driver. This includes a programme that also addresses the maintenance backlog by providing bridge strengthening to a number of bridges as this continues to remain a key objective.
	5.36	There is also an allocation of £972,000 for addressing landslips to enable stabilisation work as a cost effective approach to prevent the deterioration and potential loss of use of the network at critical locations throughout the County.
	5.37	The details of the Bridges, Structures and Landslips Programme of £4,193,000 for 2024-25 is set out in Appendix D, attached to this report.
	Medium Term Financial Plan – Pothole Fund
	5.38	A trial was carried out during summer 2023 which has indicated that an enhanced programme of planned structural patching would be beneficial to the condition and ride quality of the highway network rather than carrying out localised reactive repairs. This programme is being continued throughout 2025/26 using the £2,500,000 of pothole repair funding that is to be considered through the Councils MTFP process.  Further enhanced programmes of structural patching will be considered utilising any further additional funding that is allocated to highway maintenance above the levels shown in this report.
	5.39	The Medium Term Financial Plan Pothole Fund programme will provide repairs to those minor roads already in poor condition, which will improve the overall condition of this network, building resilience and reducing long term costs. This will help to reduce the number of potholes that arise, improve condition and ride quality and minimise the need for future repairs in these areas. Identification and prioritisation of schemes has taken into account asset management principles in order to deliver Northumberland’s Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) objectives.
	5.40	The programme to address deterioration across the lower categories of our network has been split into two packages of work:
	5.41	Carriageway Repairs which will address some of the worst sections of the minor road network, providing essential structural maintenance and resurfacing works over and above that already planned within the LTP.
	5.42	Small Works to Minor Roads which will allow us to address those more discrete areas situated on the minor road network that are identified by the Area Teams to be in poor condition.  Works will consist of smaller areas of resurfacing and structural patching.
	5.43	The details of the MTFP Pothole Fund programme of £2,500,000 for 2025-26 is set out in Appendix E, attached to this report.
	Next Steps
	5.44	Following consideration by Local Area Committees at their meetings in February, any comments received will be considered and the final 2025-26 programmes for the Local Transport Plan and will be prepared for consideration and approval by the Portfolio Holder for Improving our Roads and Highways and the Executive Director for Place and Regeneration.
	5.45	Following agreement of the final programme, all County Council members and Town and Parish Councils who put forward priorities for the LTP programme will then be provided with further information regarding the outcome of the assessment of their submission and whether it has been possible to include their priority schemes within the programme this year.
	6.	Options open to the Council and reasons for the recommendations
	6.1
	7.	Implications
	8.	Background papers
	9.	Links to other key reports already published
	10.	Author and Contact Details



